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Prefuce

By
Sigter Ellen Reagin fFrix

Just before the ending of the 18th century, a need for a place to worship created the beginning of a church that was
to be constituted and later to be known as Turner Hill Baptist Church. The first services were field in the Ofd
County Line School buifding which was focated ar the corner of Rockland Road and McDaniel Road. The circum-
stances, preacher, and records on how these services were conducted are not available.

On October 13, 1900 it is belleved thar the people met in the school fouse to constitute the church. The Presbytery
was made of members from Rockdale Baptist Church and Macedonia Baptist Church. 'The Constitution, the
Decorum, the Order of Conference and the first conference are recorded on the next pages in their original contest
with afl wording and spelling unaftered. Keep in tind these clerks were mostly hard-working farmers with a
strong desire fo have a place to worship and 1o document what is now our church history. Our curvens Decorn i
afso recorded on these pages.
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1900 — 1953

Onie of the first commitices that was s forwted was the Finance Committee and as you can se¢ ar rﬁ; : first conference,
six womten were chosen to be on this committee. The first expenses of many wore to come were the corver stone
that cost $1.50 and the coflection of $1.60 for Brother W. H. Cox who fiad been efected the  pastor. There were
qood times and bad times, and when times were hard and oney was hard to come by, the church treasury had
as fittle as 25 cents in it

A deed { for one acre of land was given to the church by Brother E. 1. Turner on November 22, 1900,

A motion to change the name 2 from Turner Hill to Turner's wayoef was made in November 1900 bur was recon-
sidered and the name was changed back to Turner Hifl in December 1900, :

There were several men that came to the church By letter as deacons. However, the first deacon to be ordained in
the new church was Brother Jofin Shaw on Aprif 27, 1901

On September 13, 1901 the church joined the Second Georgia Baptist Association, but the Association disbanded
in 1907. Turner Hill joivied the South River Association in 1908 and remained there until 1909 when Turmer
Hifl Church was dismissed to  join the Pleasant Grove Association as a charter member on October 28, 1910,

There were seven other churches that were afso charter members of this fledgling Association: Bay Creek, Pleasant
Grove, Gloster, Sharon, Pleasant Hill (Rockdale), Union Grove and Honey Creek. In 1916 Turner Hill hosted the
Association for the first time, and would continue to host the Association many wore times in years fo come.

Our. forcfathers set an exanple which many would follow in years to come. Help was needed to build this new
church so members and von-members  pitched in and began to build the church. It was a wood structure with
two single doors in the front and two in the back of the church. There were three rows of wooden slat benches, a
wood-burning stove, kerosene lamps and a row of posts runhing rﬁrougﬁ the center of the church. There were
three windows on each side, and during the surimer months if you wanted to sir by a window, you had to ar-
rive early. (Cardboard fans that fiad been donated from funeral howmes weve a welcome sigﬁr as they could be
used to help ease the heat). Likewise, if you wanted to be warm during the winter time you would get to church
early 1o get close to the wood or coafl stove. That's why the preachers wifl make the spiritual comparison of get-
ting close 1o God and the  pulpit where the qospel is being preached by telling the members, “if you wans to get
warm then get close to the fire”,

As the singing and preaching began 1o fill the church and revivals began 1o be el the gospel began to spread,
and the congregation soon outgrew the church. At this point, the windows became a means s for people who could
not ger into the church to be able to hear the sevvice, It was not uncommon to see  people standing at the door or
the windows, and even sitting on the foods of their cars because there was not enogh room in the church.

Babies on palless around the pulpit, some sleeping, some playing, a por-bellied stove, a coaf box, kerosene famps,

d?_pyers, cardboard [ fans, horse-drawn buggies, and outhouses were some of the tﬁings that were as much a  part of
the cﬁ_urcﬁ and facifities as the  people themselves,
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1900 — 1953

duside from being filled with the spiritual water of fife being preached, there was afso the natural well, with a wa-
tor bucket and dipper that were kept handy ro help quench the natural thivst. There was nothing like drawing o
good coof bucket of water and dvinking from the dipper. However, something would occasionally happen to the
well and it would have to be cleaned out. There was one titne, after being ﬁwrmrea(ﬁom not having water, that
a committee was qpyoimﬁd to GET SOME WATER. Running water was not a l_'uxmy untif 1977,

Over the years Sunday meetings have been held at different times of the month, During the early years of the
church, preachers had to be shaved between several churches, so in the beginning meetings were held once a month
on the 2nd Sunday of each month and in 1913 it was changed 1o the Ist Sunday of each month. Later on we mer
on the fiyst and third Sunday of each wonth, and we started meeting full time (every Sunday in the month) in
1987. The weather, planting, harvesting and whether there was a need for a conference  played an important
part in determining the number of conferences field each year.

The membership roll for Turner Hill numbered 52 members when we  joinied the Pleasant Grove Association. The
Sirst membership roll in 1913 indicated 67 pessons, and by 1921 we had grown to 62 members, Currently, our
mewmtbership roll contains 151 people.

Int 1930 there was a 10-foot addition to the lenigth of the church and dowble doors were  put in the front wish sin-
gle doors being placed on the side. There were two rows of new benches installed, On October 16, 1931, a commir-
tee was appointed to see about and advise as to whether or not 1o build a new church. This committee was com-
piled of five men and two women. A committee was appointed on November 1931 1o see each member of the
church for a donation toward the church treasury for the building fund.

In 1939 the words “Let there be light” took on a new meaning when electricity was installed. For the next 14
Yyears many repairs would be done on the church including painting, roofing, underpinning, and installing
screens on doors and '

windows. The official
“go-ahead” to build

a Hew church was
given on March 1953
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1953 — 2000

Bp
Sigter Lurene Richarbson Enerick

Afmost 53 years passed ﬁgfan: the members of Turner Hifl Baptist Church consideyed Eu:'f(fing a new church in
which to wotship. :

1t was decided on March 14, 1953 1o build a new brick church that would be 40 _ﬁ:cr by 60 feet in dimension, The

cost was estimated by Brother Harry Spivey to be approximately $6200 up 1o the brick stage of the construction.
The location of the new church would be 1o the right of the ofd church.

The building commirtee, Raving afveadyy been selected, was readiy to start construction. Lumber that was needed
was obtained from trees cut from Brother Aavon Lowe's property on Turner Hiff Road. The timber was ' purchased
Jrom him and sized at the will according to the need or swapped for needed lumber,

The wale members of the chunrch wanted to do as much of the construction as  possible. They mer every Saturday

_for months working on the church. The wives and female members prepared funch on Saturdays to feed all the
workers. Reverend Harvie Singleton was the  pastor during this time and e worked right along with the members.
The building of the new church was a perfect example of fellowship and working together as I feel God intends s for
us 10 do.

Afthough the outside was wot complete with the brick, the interior was completed and ready for services. The
church would be bricked faser that year, but the fivst service was held in the new church on August 14, 1954.
Our view church fad sometlsig special which would make Turner Hill Church a fitrfe different from a lot of the
churches in the neightosiioed — a floor that was raised from front to back, allowing those in the back of the
church to have a clear viaw just as easily as those members who were sitting up front.

On Ayn’f 19, 1958, 1fe 4
tion of Sunday Schoel roe
1959, a commtitter was s

% suithorized the selection of a fund committee to raise the money needed for the addi-

.. A of the elasses had been meeting int the sanctuary untif this time. In January

£ 10 inquire about the building of the Sunday School rooms. In Apri( 1960 it was
decided to start conssru the rooms. The wext major addition came in June 1962 with the additions of the
batfirooms. At the ia - added rails around the  porch and the steps. Through the years we progressed

_from attic fans ro air e g i 1971; heating and air conditioning for the Sunday School rooms in 1972; ad-
ditional Sunday Scfis. i972; cavpeting; from well water to county water in 1977.

¥
o
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£
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1953 — 2000

On September 20, 1993, during a thunderstorm, tragedy struck Turner Hiff Baprist Church when fightning hit

the church in one of the Sunday Schoof rooms. As word spread of the incident, many members gathered ar the
church with tears streaming down their faces, to witness what would become to thew, the biggest tragedy in the
history of our church. Although the church is just a building, it has also been a fiome to us — one that has pro-
vided our spivitual growth. Before the five could be contained by the fire department, the Sunday Schoof rooms fiad
been completely ruined. Although the fire did not actually progress into the sanciuary, the sanctuary was heavily
damaged from smoke and water. Songbooks, furniture, and the interior would have to be complerely replaced.

One thing that survived the fire though, was Peter Myers' Bible laying on the back bench of the church and he siiff
uses that Bible today. '

What could hiave turned into a disaster for the members of Turner Hifl Church was turned around into a first-
hiand experience of proving to each of us thar God is still in controf and thar He knows how 1o take care of every
situation that is sent our way. Without even having to search for a place in which 10 worship, Doug Henry of
Henry Funeral Home in Lithonia invited the mewmbers to hold services in his chapel for Sunday morning services.
We did not have Sunday evening services during this time. Union Grove Baptist Church offered the use of their
chutch for conference each month. Various church members opened up their homes so that we could stifl hold our
_praver meetings during this time. These meetings have been lovingly referved to as “cottage prayer meetings” and
hold a special place in our hearts for those of us who have attended such meetings.

The Sunday Schoof rooms were completely removed and the reconstruction began. Afong with vew Sunday School
roosts, a completely new interior was required for the sanctuary. Reverend Bobby Fields was chosen as the contrac-
tor for the rebutlding. Accompanying the many months of construction was the purchases of new blinds, benches,
carpet, songbooks, fight fixtures and bathroom fixtures. The piano was able to be salvaged with some extra-special
cleaning and some repair work,

After many montfis, we were able to have our first worship service in the newly rebuilt church on February 27,
1994. On Sunday, March 6, 1994 we Began a 5-day revival to celebrate reoccupying our church and giving God
fonor and gfary ( for bringing us through this trying fime.

Onlyy one thing was missing in our firtle country church — a stegple. Annie White Harrison, sister of Brother Josh
White was instrumental in getting our sregpll’ by making a donation to our church. The steeple was chosen and
erected fn 1991,

The cost of replacing our church was vot totafly covered by the insurance, but the Lord knew fow to take care of
that situation too. Donatlons came pouring in from afl over the surrounding area. We would fike to extend many
loving thanks to each church that sent a donation or offered up sincere prayers in our behialf. Also, our sincere
thanks go to every individual who may have sent a donation or remembered us in wour prayers. From the church
as a whole, we thank you and love you very much for everything. May God Bfess each one according to fiis or her

individual need,

In conclusion, it is my sincere desive that God will continue to bless our church as He has in the  past 100 years. 1
_pray that future generations will always serve God in the same paths tﬁeirjorgfatﬁm walked,
Page 20
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